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For the Disciplinary Counsel

Mel vin D. Fink 9 34 36

Nat han Lance WMarshal l 41 46 47

Patricia G Benelli 49 70 81

EXH BI TS: DESCRI PTI ON MARK ADM T

For the Disciplinary Counsel

1-5 Uni dentified docunents 5

6 Emai | dated June 4 5

7 Court order 5

8 -9 Comruni cati ons between M. 6
Fink and Ms. Benel l

10 Noti ce of Appearance 6

11 July 31 letter from Ms. 6
Benelli to M. Fink

12 Docket case for conpl ai nt 6
for divorce

13 July 31 Email from M. 6
Benelli to M. Fink

14 Emai | communi cati ons 6

For the Respondent:

1 Uni denti fi ed docunent 6

3 June 1 Enmail comrunication 7

From Ms. Benelli to M. Fink

eScribers, LLC | (973) 406-2250

operations@scri bers. net |

WWW. escri bers. net




© o0 N o o A~ w NP

N NN N NN R PR R R R R R R R
O D W N P O © O N o 00 M W N B O

(Proceedi ngs convened at 9:13 AM

THE OPERATI ONS ASSI STANT: Hi. Good norning. This
Is the operations assistant wwth the Court. Wo just joined?

THE RECORDER: Yes, it is.

THE COURT: H . Good norning. Who just joined by
phone?

THE RECORDER: This is the courtroomin Newfane, the
recorder.

THE OPERATI ONS ASSI STANT: Perfect. Thank you.

MR. MARK DI STEFANG. This is Mark speaking. Are
you -- are you doing sonething further where we should wait or
shoul d we advi se people to, you know, get -- open up their
audi o and vi deo?

THE COURT REPORTER: H . This is the court reporter,
could you just let us know when you're ready with the FTR?

THE OPERATI ONS ASSI STANT: We're good to go. Thank
you.

(Pause)

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: Al'l right. Are we ready to
start, Sophie (ph.)?

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: |'mwai ting on the operations
assi st ant.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: Ch, yes, sorry. | was just
confirmng that FTR was connected so it sounds |ike we're al

good and there's another court staff that just joined.
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Vel cone, (indiscernible).

MR DI STEFANO Thank you very nmuch, Sophie. So just
by way of explanation to the parties, the original person who
was assigned to FTR had an energency and so what fol ks have
been doing for the last half hour is finding a replacenent.

So | certainly apol ogize for the delay, sonething that was
unavoi dabl e, sonething came up this norning. And thank you
for your patience and so we're all connected here. W're al
here. W're on the record. Let's start the hearing and I'm
going to get ask that the chairman to get the hearing started
and we'll go fromthere. Thank you.

MR, GARY KARNEDY: Terrific. So it's 9:15. W're on
the record. We're here on State of Vernont Professional
Responsibility programin re Melvin Fink, PRB file nunber
2021-18. 1'm Gary Karnedy and here as chair of the review
panel with Peter Zuk and Ashley Taylor. Here, if I could just
get your name on the call. Oay. W'Il make up the panel.
Ckay.

Counsel , would you identify yourself and who you
represent?

M5. SARAH KATZ: Good norning to the panel. M nane
is Sarah Katz, I'mthe disciplinary counsel for the State of
Ver nont .

MR DAVID SLEIGH Good norning. |'mDavid Sleigh.

| represent Melvin Fink.
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MR KARNEDY: | would like to also note that Mark
D Stefano is here at hearing. So before we get started with
the first wtness, | see a nunber of exhibits.

Counsel , can you confer and soneone wll stipulate to
what you would like to do with those. |[If you want to put sone
in now, how wuld you like to proceed? M. Katz?

M5. KATZ: Certainly. Good norning. The DC exhibits
(i ndiscernible) nunbers 1 through 14. |If either of the
parties haven't heard about the exhibits and filed a
(indiscernible) indicating their (indiscernible) and the
hearing exhibit list. Let ne just double check to nake sure
"' m not m sspeaking here but | believe that the parties had
agreed to (indiscernible) in the (indiscernible) admssibility
of DC-1 through DC- 14 inclusive.

MR KARNEDY: That's true. So it sounds |ike the
parties stipulated to the adm ssion of DC1 through DC 14 and
"Il admt those for the record.

(Uni dentified documents was hereby received into evidence
as Disciplinary Counsel's Exhibit 1 - 5, as of this date.)
(Emai | dated June 4 was hereby received into evidence as
Di sciplinary Counsel's Exhibit 6, as of this date.)
(Court order was hereby received into evidence as
Di sciplinary Counsel's Exhibit 7, as of this date.)
(Communi cati ons between M. Fink and Ms. Benelli was

her eby received into evidence as Disciplinary Counsel's
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Exhibit 8 - 9, as of this date.)

(Notice of Appearance was hereby received into evidence as
Di sciplinary Counsel's Exhibit 10, as of this date.)

(July 31 letter fromMs. Benelli to M. Fink was hereby
received into evidence as Disciplinary Counsel's Exhibit 11
as of this date.)

(Docket case for conplaint for divorce was hereby received
into evidence as Disciplinary Counsel's Exhibit 12, as of this
date.)

(July 31 Email from M. Benelli to M. Fink was hereby
received into evidence as Disciplinary Counsel's Exhibit 13,
as of this date.)

(Emai | comuni cations was hereby received into evidence as
Di sciplinary Counsel's Exhibit 14, as of this date.)

MR SLEIGH Okay. Thank you, Your Honor.

Respondent submitted four exhibits, two of which | believe
di sci plinary counsel has no objection to. That will be
Respondent's 1 and Respondent's 3.

MR KARNEDY: M. Katz, is that correct?

MS. KATZ: | believe that's correct.

MR KARNEDY: Ckay. So we'll admt Respondent's 1
and Respondent’'s 3. I'll (indiscernible) wthout adm ssion,
Respondent's 2 and 4 if we can take up (indiscernible).

(Uni dentified document was hereby received into evidence

as Respondent's Exhibit 1, as of this date.)
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(June 1, 2020 comuni cation from M. Benelli to M. Fink
was hereby received into evidence as Respondent's Exhibit 3,
as of this date.)

MR KARNEDY: Very good. Ms. Katz, would you cal
your first wtness?

MR. DI STEFANOG. Excuse nme. |If | could junp in for
just a second. | would allow just to bring up the point that
(i ndi scernible) counsel's exhibits have been filed and are
avai | abl e for purposes of the record. |1'mnot sure that the
Respondent' s exhi bits have been actually submtted and so
maybe we coul d have them shown off of soneone's screen today
in terms of (indiscernible) but if you want, | think the pane
will want the entire exhibits to be submtted. So tell ne if
["mwong if they' ve already -- they've already been submtted
electronically, just tell ne because they (indiscernible) I
was going to put themin.

MR SLEIGH | believe they' ve been submtted by the
pi ece of paper that indicates that (indiscernible). | can
certainly upload themagain if that's necessary.

MR DI STEFANO Do you -- do you think they were
filed with your exhibit list originally? 1'msorry.
apologize if | mssed this.

MR SLEIGE | do. | believe that we sent themon
July the 26th.

MR DI STEFANO Hang on one second. Let ne just make
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sure that we have them | do see that now. That the -- wait
a mnute. |I'mseeing the list but I"'mjust trying to find the

exhi bits, so.

MR SLEIGH | believe it was filed in a single -- |
believe they call it an envel ope.

MR DI STEFANO Yeah. GOkay. |[|'mnot sure. So when
we have a break, what I"'mseeing is the -- | may have m ssed
it. | just scanned very quickly through those subm ssions on

the 26th. Wen we have a break, would you go back and | ook
and just make sure and draw nmy attention to that but right now
[''m going through the subm ssion and |'mnot seeing -- I'm

seeing the list itself but 1'mnot seeing the exhibits.

MR SLEIGH | don't need a break. | can just have
soneone --

MR DI STEFANO.  Ckay.

MR SLEIGH -- upload those right now and I'll have
1 and 3 and I'Il upload all four and I woul d see.

MR DI STEFANO (Okay. Thank you very nuch

M5. KATZ: Can you try and send a copy of this
because | don't know that | have not |ocated them
(i ndi scernible).

MR SLEIGH  (Indiscernible).

M. Di Stefano?

MR. DI STEFANO  Yes, yes.

MR SLEIGH  Where would you like these to be sent?
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['I'l copy these scans but where are they to go for the nost
expeditious filing of then? [1'Il send it now

MR DI STEFANO Yup. As with the other files, please
just send themto Merrit Gutfield, programadm nistrator of
(i ndiscernible) panel and --

MR SLEIGH Hold on.

MR DI STEFANO -- and copy Attorney Katz and she'l
send themoff to the panel.

MR SLEIGH Yeah. We had an email problemwth
Merrit so we'll send themagain to Merrit and Ms. Kat z.

MR DI STEFANO Caky. Thank you.

MR SLEIGH Al right. Thanks. Al right.

MR KARNEDY: Ckay. Geat.

Vel l, why don't you call your first witness and I|"|

swear himin.

M5. KATZ: | will. Good nmorning, everybody. | cal
Mel vin Fink.

MR KARNEDY: Good norning, M. Fink. | think you're
on nute. | can't hear you. Can you hear nme okay? know.

MR MELVIN D. FINK: Good norning, sir. Yes, | can.
MELVI N D. FI NK
havi ng been duly sworn, testified as follows:
THE WTNESS: | do.
MR, KARNEDY: Thank you.
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON

eScribers, LLC | (973) 406-2250
operations@scribers.net | ww. escribers. net




© o0 N o o A~ w NP

N NN N NN R PR R R R R R R R
O D W N P O © O N o 00 M W N B O

10

BY Ms. KATZ:

Q Hey, M. Fink. Can you introduce yourself to the
panel. Tell thema little about your current |egal practice
and sone of your work history and (indiscernible).

A. My name is Melvin Fink. | ama solo practitioner in
Rutl and, Vernont and |'ve practiced |law for fifty-one years.

Q And what type of |aw have you been practicing over
the course of fifty-one years?

A.  CGeneral practice.

Q So would you say that every type of thing a small -
town | awer gets fromdivorced to crimnal to everything or do
you have any sort of narrower areas of practice that you take
or do not take (indiscernible)?

A Well, throughout the -- excuse ne. Throughout the
years, |'ve handl ed many varying cases, including donestic,
crimnal, real estate, personal injury, state.

Q So a large variety of practice; would you say?

A I'msorry. | didn't hear.

Q Sorry. I'll speak up

M5. KATZ: How s the volume for everybody else? |'m
going to adjust ny volune a little.

Q Is that any better, sir?

A Yes, it is.

Q Okay. Wuld you say that's a large variety across

various (i ndiscernible).
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A Wll, it's awde, certainly wide variety of facts
through the years. |'ve limted sone areas that | used to
practice by way of (indiscernible) to do bankruptcy cases,

t hey became too conplicated, | discontinued those type of
cases a nunber of years ago.

Q Ckay. So over the course of the fifty-one years, has
famly law or domestic matters been sort of naminstay at that
practice?

A.  No.

Q Gkay. Has there been certain decades over the five
pl us decades where you' ve practiced nore, worked nore over
other work, or is there any way you could estimate how many
di vorces you' ve handled in the last ten years, say?

A | don't really knowif | can do that with any
accuracy. So --

Q ay.

A. | have -- | had -- | had represented folks in
donestic cases nore in recent years than the previous years.

Q ay. How many current donestic cases do you have
ri ght now?

A. So |I'mgoing to guess --

(Reconnecting to WebEx)

Q I've emailed you -- (indiscernible).

THE OPERATI ONS ASSI STANT: That was the courtroom

reconnecti ng.
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M5. KATZ: Ckay.

MR KARNEDY: Do we have a problemon recording?

THE OPERATI ONS ASSI STANT: It appears that for
sone -- for a brief tine, the tel ephone di sconnected, yes.
The court recorder continued to type responses.

MR. KARNEDY: Thank you.
BY Ms. KATZ:

Q Oay. 1'dlike to direct your attention, sir, to the
next exhibit that's marked DC-6. And this is an enail dated
next day, June 4th, 2020. And is this your (audio
interference) email June 3rd comruni cati on we just went over?

A Yes, it is.

Q And what was your understanding of what Ms. Benell
was trying to acconplish for her client at this neeting?

A. This is ny comunication.

Q I'msorry. You're right. Wat were you trying to
communi cate with this conmmunication to Ms. Benelli?

A. It was to indicate that the horse cones before the
cart, that we need an agreenent before we started inplenmenting
(i ndi scernible).

Q Andis it fair to say (indiscernible) subject matter
here is continuing to be about a disposition of marita
property?

A, Yes.

Q And did either of you have these comuni cations that

eScribers, LLC | (973) 406-2250
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happened in qui ck succession here fromJune 1 to June 4, 20207
So that's (indiscernible) 3, 4, 5 and 6. Ws there any

di scussion or any indication by Ms. Benelli that she would no
| onger be involved in the matter if you're planning to file to

t he divorce court?

A.  No.
Q I'dlike to take one footnote over here now and take
a |l ook at nore communi cation between you and Ms. Benelli on

DC-8 and DC-9. And these enmils seemto be dated June 12th,
2020. Is that correct for you too?

A. That's what it says at the top of the exhibit. Yeah,
that's what it indicates but that's not part of the emi
itself.

Q ay. Do you have any information or nenory that the
comuni cati ons nmay have occurred on a conpletely different
date or were they all around that tine?

A. They were all around that tinme. | haven't checked
t hem agai nst the actual email.

Q Oay. So DC-8 and then again DC9, these were
comuni cati ons between you and Ms. Benelli. 1Is it fair to say
that -- is it fair to characterize these as ongoi ng
negoti ati ons between the attorney, provided by the realtor, to
wind up the marriage and divide the marital property?

A, Yes.

Q So at sone point | believe your client proceeded to
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the filing of the conplaint for divorce?

A | did.

Q And DC-12 | believe is a docket case for that with
the understanding |I think that around that tine, sonetines
docket sheets may not reflect exactly sonething because of
changes to the court operations, but this reflects DC 12 here
that the divorce conplaint was filed on June 26th, 2021; does
that sound right to you?

A It was filed then, yes.

Q ay.

A. And it |ooks |ike based on the docket sheet that it
was filed but that service was not actually conpleted unti
July 20th; is that right?

A. Well, | received back the returning service fromthe
W ndsor County Sheriff's Department in June -- excuse nme. In
June.

Q Okay. So it looks like, according to the docket
sheet in DC-12 and it says there under June 26th, 2020 that
the sheriff is returning a service, that's (indiscernible).
So woul d you agree then that you may have received it but
maybe it wasn't signed?

A. | don't know.

Q Okay. Well, let's go ahead and take a | ook at that
DC-7 which is a court order for the matter between

(i ndiscernible) and M. Marshall Nathan's where there was
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(indiscernible) service. And this one appears to be dated
July 20th, 2020. And (indiscernible). Do you have any reason
to believe that this record, Dc-7, is not representative of

t hat services (indiscernible)?

A. | only know that the sheriff's departnent served
earlier in June and that's what was filed in court.

Q Gkay. (Indiscernible) we a date on the job and she
acceptance of service form so that's DC-12 and DC-7 but it
appears the service was not conplete until July 20th of 2020.

A Well, | don't want to argue the issue with you but

what constitutes service to process. The sheriff served M.

Marshall in June and that was filed with the Court so is that
service? This -- this was the start of service and then
filed.

Q Oay. So it sounds like you do want to just dea
with that service -- that service bill date with July 20th,
2020.

A | don't dispute it; I"'mjust trying to describe to
you what happened.

Q kay. So between your communications with M.
Benel i around June 12th of 2020 and the acceptance of service
July 20th of 2020, do you have any nenory of other
comuni cations that you had with Ms. Benelli?

A.  No, not of the top off ny head.

Q And did you -- can your recollection -- did you take
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any vacation during that time or did Ms. Benell
(indiscernible) after that?

A.  You know, | think -- what was the -- I'msorry.
excuse nme. What were the dates that you nentioned again?

Q Certainly. So in the email conmunications between
you and Ms. Benelli fromaround -- I'mgoing to say around
June 12th of 2020. (Indiscernible) around June 12th of 2020
to July 20th of 2020, the acceptance of service and then for
i n between there you have the (indiscernible) dated June 26th
of 2020. Do you have any nenory of any other conmuni cations
you had with Ms. Benelli between those tine franes? So
bet ween June 12th of 2020 to around July 20th?

A.  (Indiscernible) July 20th. No, not of the top of ny
head. | have no recollection of it.

Q ay. And then the next question | had asked you was
did you have any nmenory of you yourself taking any medication
during that time for (indiscernible)?

A.  You know, | reviewed the ermails that you had
submtted, Ms. Katz, and there was a reference, | think she
was -- she was taking a vacation sonetinme around there if I'm
not m staken. My nenory suggests that. | do not believe |
t ook any vacation during that tine as well.

Q Okay. So let's take a look at what's next here
chronologically. It looks like -- and I'm | ooking here at DC

10, in response to the divorce conplaint filed by your client,
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Nat han filed an answer and it |ooks to ne |like that answer is
DC-10 and that it's dated July 29th of 2020. Do you agree
that that's Nathan's handwriting?

A It's what | received as his answer and it appears to
be signed and notarized by him

Q Gkay. And can you read through his notary down there
(i ndi scernible) obviously of course dated July 29th, 20207

A.  Ms. Benelli.

Q So based on what happened the next year
chronol ogically, 1I'mlooking here at DC-11 which | believe is
the next witten comunication that we have fromyou and Ms.
Benel i and what was the traffic of that witten
communi cation, there? It's DC 11.

A.  That was having to do with stimulus paynments that had
been received.

Q Oay. And this letter here, you would agree that

you're still referring to Nathan as Ms. Benelli's client; is
that right?
A. Correct. | have not yet received his notice of

appear ance.
Q ay. So nmoving on here chronologically, | now

have -- 1 ooking at DC- 13 which | ooks to be an enai

comuni cati on agai n between (indiscernible) and Ms. Benelli.

So this email appears to be dated July 31st, 2020. And when

you got this email from M. Benelli, what did you understand
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that that email was trying to acconplish for her son?
A.  Let's check.
(Reconnecting to WebEx)
(Recess at 9:56 a.m, until 9:58 a.m)

THE OPERATI ONS ASSI STANT: What was the last thing
you entered on the record?

THE COURT REPORTER: About marital property was the
questi on.

THE OPERATI ONS ASSI STANT: The question about marita
property?

MR KARNEDY: Can you pl ease go back -- find the |ast
exhi bit reference?

THE OPERATI ONS ASSI STANT:  The | ast exhibit
reference?

THE COURT REPORTER: DC-13, enmil conmunication.

THE OPERATI ONS ASSI STANT: DG 13, enai
conmuni cat i ons.

MR KARNEDY: Ckay. So | would ask counsel to start
out with questions on that exhibit, just so we're clear that
we haven't mssed anything. | think we're okay but just to be
clear, why don't you start with DC-13 and re-ask your
questi ons.

M5. KATZ: | can do that. |Is everybody ready?

THE OPERATI ONS ASSI STANT:  You ready?

THE COURT REPORTER: Yup, we should be all set.
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BY MS. KATZ:

Q ay. So going back now, we're | ooking here at DC
13. Wuld you agree that this is again, email conmunications
bet ween you and Ms. Benelli and that the date is July 31st,
20207

A So it is dated July 31st. It is a communication, the
31st was, | believe, on a Friday. And so you understand, |
was at home recovering fromsurgery that took place on
Thursday, the preceding day. So while it's dated the 31st, it
wasn't received by me until the follow ng week.

Q Ckay.

A And while -- and I think you also referred to M.
Marshal |'s pro se appearance being dated the 29th and
notarized the 29th. That would have been numiled from
Springfield and you can see fromthe docket sheet that it was
not received by the Court until -- pardon me, until the 3rd of
August and that's approximately the tine that I would have
received it at the office in Ludl ow

Q kay. So are you suggesting, sir, that you
received -- around the same tine you received a copy of the
pro se answer dated July 29th, 2020 and notarized by M.
Benelli, that you received those itens possibly around the
sane time as Ms. Benelli's enmail dated July 31st, 2020 when
you were back in the office the foll ow ng week?

A. No, | received the email fromAttorney Benelli prior
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to M. Marshall's notice of pro se appearance.

Q Ckay. But you would agree, sir, that the pro se

appearance is dated July 29th and the email is dated after the
pro se appearance from M. Benelli to you, right?
A. | don't question the dates. |'mjust telling you

when they were received.
Q Oay. And | think you --
Recei ved and fil ed.
|"msorry | spoke over you. What were you sayi ng?

| said received and fil ed.

O > O

Recei ved and fil ed.

A. Because if it was mailed from Springfield, it would
have taken approximately the sane tinme to go to Wite River as
it would to go to Ludl ow because mail sent from Springfield
goes via Wiite River

Q Oay. And | may have al ready asked this question but
I"mnot sure that it was during the (indiscernible) and court
reporter so I'Il just ask it again. Wen you receive this
emai | dated July 31st 2020 from Ms. Benelli, how did you --
what di d you understand that the objective for this email was
for her client?

A.  Continuing negotiations.

Q About how to dissolve the nmarriage and divide up
property?

A.  About how to divide up property, yes.
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Q After the pro se appearance or after this witten
comuni cation here dated July 31st, did you respond to Ms.
Benelli at all during the next few weeks?

A.  No.

Q Dd M. Benelli during that time ever indicate to you
t hat she was no | onger representing Nathan?

A. Well, | took his notice of appearance pro se having
been notarized by her as such an indication.

Q D d you ever call and ask Ms. Benelli whether she was
no | onger representing Nathan?

A. | did not.

Q And she never told you that she was no | onger
representing Nat han?

A Wll, that's how | interpreted the notarization of
his pro se --

Q I'mnot asking how you interpreted that form sir
I"masking did Ms. Benelli ever tell you she was no | onger
representing Nate?

A. No.

Q Wuen is the next tine you recall comunicating with
anybody ot her than your own client about the divorce matter
i nvol vi ng Nat han and Deni se?

A. | called M. Marshall

Q And when was that?

A | believe it was August 17.
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Q And what is your nmenory of that phone call?

A.  To determ ne whether he wanted to reach sone sort of
an agreenent and if he did, to get together with himto see if
we could iron out an agreenment -- agreenent.

Q GCkay. So that's your conplete nenory of the
conversation or do you have any nore specific menory of -- of
how t hat unfol ded? You called him did he answer? Can you
(i ndiscernible), your best nmenory of that?

A. You know, | -- | think that | called himand then he
cal l ed me back but |I'm not absolutely certain whether | spoke
wi th himupon calling or he got back to ne in thinking he got
back to mne.

Q Okay. And let's assunme he called you back and you
answered and what is your best nmenory of what that
conversation was |ike?

A. | asked himwhether he was interested in reaching an
agreenent. He said yes. | told himthat ny client was
simlarly interested and did he want to get together to see if
we coul d hash out an agreenent. | told himthat | was calling
himdirectly because | had received his pro se notice of
appearance. | recall himindicating at some tine in the
conversation that he was only going to use Attorney Benelli if
we wound up going to court, if there could be no agreenent.

W tal ked about dates.

He tal ked -- he nentioned that he was going to |et
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Attorney Benelli know and | think in response to that, | had
told himthat | called himdirectly because of his pro se
appearance and that as far as | was concerned, she was not
involved in representing himand that if he wanted to cal
her, fine but if he didn't want to, that's fine with ne. |
didn't feel it was necessary to. It was a short conversation
It was -- | don't want to take away fromit but it was not
remar kable so | didn't make any notes about it. Wen | say
not remarkabl e, nothing substantive happened except that we
schedul ed a date that was convenient for himto cone to the
office and sit down and tal k.

Q So in your nmenory then there was an actual date
schedul ed?

A, There was.

Q But I also --

A And --

Q -- you say that Nathan told you that he needed to
check with Ms. Benelli. Isn't that right?

A. | don't know whether he said check with her. | think
he was going to tell her. | don't -- | don't think he used

the word check but | don't recall the |anguage.

Q And when he said that, at no point did you say
sonething like, oh, I'msorry, | didn't realize she was stil
your |awyer, but instead |I think you suggested that you said

that as far as you were concerned, she didn't have to be
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there. 1Isn't that right?

A Well, | said -- ny response was to his suggestion
that he wasn't going to use a |lawyer unless it went to Court
and | believe that response was to ny suggestion that | called
hi m because he had entered a pro se appearance.

Q And again, you hadn't actually checked with M.
Benelli on any of this before calling him is that right?

A |1 did -- | did not.

Q And when M. Marshall brought up Ms. Benelli's nane
and whet her he used the word check with or contact her or ask
her or speak about coordinating, having her the date at no
point did you say, oh, | didn't realize perhaps | should be
speaking with her, you didn't say anything like that, did you?

A. | did not.

Q Wiat is your nenory of what happened after the phone
call w th Nathan?

A.  Wth Nathan, nothing nore. There was no neeting,
there was no further contact.

Q And what is your menory of what happened after the
phone call; did Ms. Benelli contact you?

A. She did, she sent an email at some point.

Q Let's go ahead and look at -- | believe that email is

DC-14. And the chronology of DC-14 is a little confusing, |
admt because it contains a couple of different emails here.

But which of these |looks to ne that the last -- on page 2
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appears to be the first in the chronology, but you tell nme if

that's correct. And now what appears to be dated August 17th,

2020, sane day as (indiscernible).

A. That's what it says.
Q kay. And is this the -- is this the -- is this the
contact wwth Ms. Benelli that you're referring to as the next

time that you spoke to her?

A.
Q

Whi ch one?

The email from M. Benelli on page 2 of DC 14, dated

Monday, August 13th, 2020, with the tinme stanp of 17:02?

A

SoI'"'m-- 1 agree with you. | have becone confused.

Wiich is the email you're referring to?

Q I'mreferring to the second page

A, Yes.

Q DC14. The email that appears there on the bul k of
that page, so it says fromP. Benelli, date Monday, 17 August,

2020, tinme 17:02:32, to mel awer @ontast.net. Do you know

Nat han call ed today to report that you had called himthat he

cal | ed back based on his called ID, that you thanked him for

cal ling back, you then went on to invite himto nmeet with you

one-on-one at your office next Monday at 10 a.m amto discuss

settlement --
A, Okay. | see the --
Q (Indiscernible).

Thank you. | see the confusion in ny exhibits that |
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have fromyou, that's the first page.
Q On. | apologize for that.
A. No problem And at the top of that it says 19/20 and

It says original email then it says the Mnday, August 17th at

17:02. Is that the one you're referring to?

Q Yes.

A, Okay. That's ny first page. | have that email
Yes.

Q Oay. And was this the first tine you had heard from
Ms. Benelli in a while?

A.  Yeah, however long it was.

Q And | believe -- | believe you said you hadn't heard
fromher after we were | ooking at the comruni cati ons dated
July 31st of 2020. | don't recall you saying that you had any
ot her communi cation with her between July 31st of 2020 and
t his comunication here, but correct me if that's not right?

A. | don't -- | think that's correct. | don't recal
any.

Q Oay. So with this email here, the sanme day that you
had a phone conversation with Nathan. How did you understand
this email fromMs. Benelli; what did you take it to mean?

A | took it to mean she was chastising ne for
contacting an individual who had filed a pro se appearance.

Q And did you take it to nean that she was telling you

that she still represented Nat han?
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A Well, she's -- | guess she's trying to say that.

Q D d you have reason to doubt that Ms. Benelli was
bei ng honest with you, that she still represented Nathan?

A Wll, | nmean, what do you go by?

Q WwWll, you told nme that you had sonewhere between one

and ten cases with her currently and that you' d had many cases
with her over the years, so you tell ne. Going by that,
havi ng had many cases with her, did you have reason to believe
she was being di shonest with you, telling you she stil
represented Nate?

A. Dishonest, no, but confusing, yes. | don't know of
anot her situation where sonebody files a pro se appearance
notari zed by an attorney and then purports to be
represented -- continued to be represented by that attorney.

Q | see. So you never help clients out with a slightly
different fee-structure nodel to handle parts of their cases,
or maybe not others. That's not sonething you' re famliar
with?

A No. No. Odinarily, I -- 1 don't engage in that
practi ce.

Q Are you aware that there are other practitioners who
do an effort to help make the cost of |egal services
accessi ble for sone?

A vell --

MR SLEIGH | would object to the question. It
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calls for speculation. How would he know how sonme ot her
| awyer is notivated in ternms of entering into agreenents with
clients?

MR, KARNEDY: Ms. Katz?

M5. KATZ: The witness has testified to having
practiced law in the area for fifty-one years. The question
I's phrased as is he aware. | think he can answer either yes
or no as to whether he's aware that some attorneys in his
region or in fact his area engage in a type of unbundling of
| egal services in order to nake the services accessible or
ot herw se.

MR SLEIGH | would object to the question where it
says in order to. | mean, he could be aware that peopl e have
sone kind of limted practice. M objection goes to his
know edge of their notivation.

M5. KATZ: | can split the question into two pieces
if that's better.

MR, KARNEDY: Wy don't you -- if it makes sense,
just ask a different question and see if there's an objection
and if we need to break out to consider the objection, we can.
BY Ms. KATZ:

Q Are you aware, sir, that some attorneys in Vernont
offer legal services to individuals where they may not take on
t he whol e of every possible conponent of the case but in a

limted way?
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A So what | amaware of -- and |I'm not | ooking for any
appl ause on this, Ms. Katz. |[|'ve been doing pro bono work for
fifty years. And through the years, received pens and
certificates and whatever el se and when | represent sonebody
pro bono, | file a notice of appearance and | represent them

Q So it sounds like your answer to the question is you
don't personally engage in that practice. But the question
Is, are you aware that is a practice that other |awers in the
area engage in?

A. | amnot.

Q GCkay. So going back to DC- 14, ny understanding is
that you took the August 17th, 2020 ermail from M. Benelli to
be disparaging you or calling M. Marshall directly, but that
you still were not clear that she was representing M.
Marshal | based on that email or am| msstating your
testi nony?

A. Well, she refers to him | believe, let me -- let me
take a look. She refers to himas her client. She says that.
But certainly | did not contrary to the pro se notice of
appear ance, which she was aware of . But going forward from
that letter, | had no further contact.

Q You had no further? I'msorry. | didn't catch the
| ast word. No further what?

A. | had no further contact.

Q ay. So --
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A.  The neeting did not happen

Q GCkay. So on the sane date, which again, | apol ogize
for the layout of DC-14, but on ny page 1 it appears there's
anot her email al so on August 17th, 2020 from Ms. Benelli to
you. And on ny page that appears on the bottom it says now,
this newemail is comng to you as a shortcut by forwarding
emai | below which | sent to you earlier because our regular
email systemis that this is a programhard to use, but the
substance of it is I'mwiting in response to your letter of
July 31 which I think she nmust nmean DC 11 based on her
testinony. Wuld you agree? Because | don't think there was
another letter of July 31.

A. Do | agree that this was an emil ?

Q The question is -- the question is the email that
refers to your letter of July 31. By your letter on July 31,
do you agree what is meant by that is what is in the record as
DC-11, which is a letter fromyou to Ms. Benelli dated July 31
about the disposition of the marital property?

A. | agree.

Q Okay. So by this additional email August 17th, 2020,
You take this email to -- again, be -- trying to help with the
divide the assets of the marriage of the parties?

MR SLEIGH Excuse me. I'ma little confused now.
Are you tal king about -- okay, all right, I get it. Thank

you. Never mi nd.
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MS. KATZ: Sure.

A, Wuld you restate the question, please?
Q Certainly --

A, Ckay.

Q

-- the question was just about the other August 17th,
2020, twenty email from Ms. Benelli to you. And the question
I's how did you take to the neaning of this email. D d you
view it again as further discussion about the assets of the
coupl e or how did you understand that email ?

A It was in response to an inquiry about the stinulus.

Q Okay. So you don't consider the stinulus to be part
of the property of the couple?

A Wll, yes and no. |If the parties agreed to sinply
split it then it's taken off the table.

Q Okay. But they're splitting it so it seens that they
have to cone to sonme agreenent to split it so it's still part

of the marital property that they have to agree to, right?

A Well, yes, it is. It is certainly marital property
but I think -- | think the government has indicated howit's
to be divided.

Q ay. So |ooking above that nessage, it |ooks |ike
t he next enail comunication that we have here chronol ogically
i's just above that dated Friday, August 21 of 2020 fromyou to
Ms. Benelli. And what is it you were trying to comunicate

here with this email that says, don't pontificate to ne,
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Nat han Marshall filed a pro se appearance; he represents
hi msel f, peri od.

A. The letter that you just previously referred to which
is on ny first page and your second page.

Q ay. And what (indiscernible) --

A DdIl say letter? Wat | neant was enmail .

Q Certainly. And what is it you were trying to
comuni cate with your email? The one | just read.

A. That that email that we're referring to, which
purports to chastise nme, shouldn't chastise ne for the reason
| contacted himbecause he had filed a pro se appearance.

Q Wuld you agree that with your email of August 21st,
2020, you did not give Ms. Benelli any indication that you
woul d go through her for further conmunication with Nathan?

A.  That was not discussed.

Q Inthis email, would you agree that there is no
i ndi cation that you will go through Ms. Benelli?

A.  Yes, that was not discussed.

Q Are you suggesting so that as the opposing counse
you have a say in the attorney-client relationship between the
ot her side?

A. Not at all.

Q Moving on chronologically just above that, the |ast
emai |l that we have here in DC- 14 dated August, 24th of 2020

fromMs. Benelli to you. Now, your enail inplies that you are
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still not accepting that Nathan is represented, he is, period,
you are not to have any nore direct contact with him period.
You are fully aware | represent Nathan, so on and so forth.

W' ve been exchangi ng settl enent proposals and ot her

comuni cations even after the divorce is filed. Do you recal
receiving that email and how did you understand what it neant?

A | didreceiveit. And after it was sent, | waited
for an appearance to be filed.

Q ay. And how did you understand that -- what did
you understand that enmail to nean?

A.  That Attorney Benelli was now saying that she
continued to represent M. Marshall contrary to the record,
the divorce had been filed, there was no notice of appearance
so it seened inconsistent.

Q Sois it fair to say then that you still were not
sure after this email that Ms. Benelli represented Nathan? 1Is
t hat what you're saying?

A. | was certain that she had not yet filed a notice of
appearance with the Court and in ny mnd when sonebody
represents sonebody in a pending case, you file a notice of
appearance so that the other side knows who to contact or who
to send di scovery or who to conduct business wth.

Q After this email|l dated August 24th, 2020, who did you
communi cate with about this matter?

A | didn't.
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Q You didn't communicate with anybody about this
matter?

A, Not until nmuch later when a notice of appearance was
filed by Ms. Benelli.

Q And your client understood that you were just going
to wait?

A Well, | don't think it's fair for me to tell you what
ny client understood or not.

Q Fair enough

M5. KATZ: Your Honor, | do not have any further
guesti ons.
MR SLEIGH | just have a few
MR KARNEDY: Co ahead.
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR SLEI GH:

Q M. Fink, going back to DC-11. July 31st, letter
fromyou to Ms. Benelli and | ooking at DC- 13, the July 31st
email fromM. Benelli to you. Did you receive each of those
bef ore you received notice of Nathan's pro se appearance?

A | did.

Q Looking at DC-10, the notice of appearance. It says,
"I intend to represent nyself and hereby enter ny appearance
with the Court, no attorney will represent me in this case
unl ess an attorney or | notify the Court otherw se.” You were

in receipt of that notice when it was served on you sonetine
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after August the 3rd, 20207

Yes.

And it was executed by Nathan?
It appears to be.

And notarized by Ms. Benelli?

> o > O »F

Correct.

Q So did you interpret this as a Court filing that was
true and accurate and represented exactly what it said in
bl ack and white?

A, Yes.

Q D d you contact Nathan Marshall at any tine between
August the 3rd and August the 16t h?

A.  No.

Q D d you have any conmunication from M. Benelli on
M. Marshall's behal f between August the 3rd and August 16t h?

A. No, | don't believe so.

Q Wen you and M. Marshall spoke on the phone, was the
sol e purpose of that conversation or conversations to schedul e
a nmeeting to discuss the potential of resolving the divorce?

A, Yes.

Q During those conversations, were any issues of
substance discussed at all?

A.  None.

Q After Ms. Benelli's email of August the 17th

chastising you for what she perceived to be a violation of
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rule 4.2, did you attenpt to or did you actually contact or

comuni cate with Nathan Marshall in any way?
A.  No.
MR. SLEIGH: | have no further questions.

MR KARNEDY: Any additional questions, Ms. Katz, or
turn to the panel ?
M5. KATZ: Yes, just one | think.
REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MS. KATZ:

Q M. Fink, going back to the phone conversation that
you had wi th Nat han on August 17th. | understand that it's
your view that nothing of substance was di scussed on that cal
but woul d you agree that you asked himin that call if he was
interested in reaching an agreenent and he said yes?

A. | agree with that statenent.

Q ay.

M5. KATZ: No further questions.

MR, KARNEDY: Any questions fromthe panel ?

Peter, any questions?

MR. PETER ZUK: No.

MR, KARNEDY: Ashl ey, any questions?

MS. ASHLEY TAYLOR: | guess just to clarify. Between
July 31st and August 17th, did you -- was there -- was there a
| ot of novenment on the case during those few weeks? Do you

remenber, you said you didn't comrunicate with Ms. Benelli or
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Nat han. Do you remenber doing nmuch on the case at all during
those few weeks?

THE WTNESS: No. | -- | had surgery on that
Thursday. | think I indicated that | was at home on Friday
all day and saw her email when | got to the office the
foll owi ng week and didn't do anything in response to that is
ny recollection and when | got the notice of appearance after
her email wherein M. Marshall indicated he was going to be
representing hinself, |I did contact ny client and we had a
conference and that was the only thing that happened until |
pl aced t he phone call the follow ng Monday.

M5. TAYLOR. And do you renenber when you got the
notice, the pro se notice dated July 29th, do you renenber
| ooking at that date at all and noting that it was dated
before the 7/ 31 correspondence that you received from M.
Benel I'i ?

THE WTNESS: So | wouldn't have gotten that unti
the mddle of the follow ng week and that sort of coincides
with when it was filed with the Court. | think it probably
took the sane anobunt to be filed as it took to get to me.

M5. TAYLOR: Yeah. | understand you received it
after. |'mjust wondering whether you remenber |ooking at the
date that the pro se notice was actually signed and noting
that it was the 29th. Do you recall renenbering whether the

noti ce was dated prior to the email and letter of
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correspondence you received from M. Benell

THE WTNESS: At the tine | received it, | probably
did not take a special note of the date inside.

M5. TAYLOR: (Ckay. | don't have any other questions.

MR KARNEDY: Attorney Fink, you nmentioned that sone
of this was a bit confusing and did you consider after you
received the notice of appearance and saw that the notary was
signed by Attorney Benelli, did you consider calling her up
and asking for clarification whether she was representing him
or not?

THE WTNESS: | think when | received the notice of
appearance, | didn't necessarily consider that confusing, |
t hought it was nore confusing when she purported to be
representing himafter he -- after he had filed a pro se
noti ce of appearance.

MR, KARNEDY: In your experience working on narital
matters in particular, do you find that opposing counsel will
represent someone and then you have a comunications with
them as in this case, and then suddenly they' re no | onger
representing the person; is that comon in your experience?

THE W TNESS:  No.

MR KARNEDY: So again, after you' ve received notice
of appearance, she's notarized his signature. Any question in
your mind as to whether she was representing himor not worthy

of a phone call?
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THE WTNESS:. No, because anything that she would
have done whi ch purported to represent M. Marshall woul d have
been prior in time to the notice of appearance that | received
and once | received the notice of appearance pro se,
especially since she had notarized it, in nmy mnd that was it.

MR KARNEDY: Thank you very nuch.

THE W TNESS: You're wel cone.

MR KARNEDY: Attorney Di Stefano, do we need to
confer before we dismss the wtness?

MR DI STEFANG. | do not.

MR KARNEDY: Ckay. Thank you very much then

THE W TNESS: You're wel cone.

MR DI STEFANO | wonder if we could take a short
break, though, just maybe like five mnutes before the next
W t ness.

MR KARNEDY: Ckay.

M5. KATZ: That'll give ne a chance to grab a phone
and tell themto sign it so that | would need that.

MR DI STEFANO Thank you

(Recess at 10:40 a.m, until 10:48 a.m)

MR, KARNEDY: Mark, it looks |ike fol ks are back.

MR DISTEFANG [|'mall set.

MR KARNEDY: Ckay. Wre back on the record. Court
reporter, can you hear me? You with us?

Sophi e, can you comuni cate with the court reporter
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just to nmake sure we're all on?

THE OPERATI ONS ASSI STANT: Yes, | will do that right
now.

MR KARNEDY: Thank you.

THE OPERATI ONS ASSI STANT: Al right. They're al
set in the courtroom

MR. KARNEDY: Thank you very nuch. Ckay.

Attorney Katz, you can call your next w tness,
pl ease.

MS. KATZ: Yes. | call Nathan Marshall who | believe
Is signed it through Ms. Benelli's nane appearing on the
screen there. Hopefully he's in the roomand he can turn his
vi deo and audi o on.

MR. NATHAN MARSHALL: (Indiscernible).

M5. KATZ: Ckay.

MR KARNEDY: Ckay. GCkay. | see you there, Nathan.
My name is Gary Karnedy. |'mthe chair of the panel here.
Can you hear ne okay?

MR MARSHALL: Yes, | can.

MR KARNEDY: So I'll swear you in then you' |l be
asked sonme questions. Ckay?

MR, MARSHALL: Yes, sir

MR KARNEDY: Ckay. Raise your right hand.

NATHAN LANCE MARSHALL

havi ng been duly sworn, testified as follows:
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MR KARNEDY: Your w tness.
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MS. KATZ:

Q Good norning, Nathan. Can you introduce yourself to
the panel and tell themyour full nanme and spell it?

A.  Yes. Nathan Marshal. Nathan Lance Marshal l
NA-T-HANL-ANGCGE MAAR S HA-L-L.

Q And where do you |live and what do you do for a
l'iving?

A. | live in Washington, Vernont. |'ma persona
trainer.

Q Have you been involved with the divorce proceeding
with your spouse Denise (ph.)?

A, Yes.
And roughly when did that start?
End of April l|ast year.
Last year, 20207

Yes.

O >» O > O

At sone point, did you start the process of trying to
get a |lawer for that matter and can you tell the panel about
how you went about that?

A Yes. Let's see. So we'rein -- in May where | had
started to seek out an attorney, | had reached out to an
attorney who had helped nme in the past but it was a conflict

of interest so | had reached out to another one that he
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recomnmended, whi ch ended up not getting any call backs and it
had taken nme a few weeks to be able to reach out and then
finally I had gotten a call fromthis other attorney's office
and they reconmended Patricia Benelli. | had reached out to
her and she answered the phone the first tinme | called and --
and we proceeded fromthere.

Q Was one of the attorneys you | ooked into hiring
before you |l anded with Ms. Benelli, was one of those attorneys
t he respondent, M. Fink?

A, Yes, it was.

Q And did you already know hima little bit or knew who
he was?

A.  Yes, when | had reached out to him | had then heard
that he was al ready working with Deni se.

Q Do you have any sort of history or famly
relationship that is also separate or was there a nei ghbor or
sonebody (i ndiscernible).

A. He is ny aunt's neighbor. So I've nmet himbefore at
different parties that have been there. He's represented ny
nomin ny parent's divorce, he's represented, you know, nmny
aunt and ot her various famly nenbers, you know, several
times, which is -- and also being ny aunt's nei ghbor, which is
why | had reached out to him

Q Wen you started working with Ms. Benelli on the

matter, you may have already said this but was that around May
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of 2020? | can't renenber. Did you say that?

A Yup. It would have been right at the end of -- the
end of May 2020.

Q Was it your hope or expectation to resolve the matter
W t hout court invol venent?

A.  Absolutely. Yup

Q At sone point, did you receive service of a divorce
conpl aint from Deni se?

A, Yes.

Q And what did you do when you got that?

A. Wth the divorce conplaint. Let's see. | was going
to say. So that -- the divorce conplaint, just to be clear,
that's the same as the -- the -- the divorce agreenment that |

have received from M. Fink?

Q On, no, I"'mjust asking about the piece of paper that
cane from Denise that was filed with the Court --

A Ckay.

Q ~-- as the divorce conplaint. Suing you for a
divorce, that court case. Do you recall getting that?

A. | do recall that. There was a lot going on at that
time, but | had hoped -- ny hope was that was still to -- at
the tine at the divorce, it seened |ike we would be able to
settle it out of court. So with the divorce conplaint, I had
responded representing nyself trying to resolve that with the

assi stance of (indiscernible).
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Q Oay. So | think what you're referring to is that
you filed that answer and that formand that you filed it
yourself pro se. Can you explain why you did that and what
was -- what was that -- why did you do that if Ms. Benelli was
your attorney?

A. Because as | had explained to her that | was trying
to -- as | was explained to you, Ms. Benelli was -- |
hadn't -- it still had seemed |ike we would be able to settle
it out of court and I didn't have her represent ne, nake an
appearance in court at that tine. | had really thought both
parties, both nyself and Denise thought that we'd be able to
resolve it just through proposals. So |I had her -- her
assisting nme through every step of the matter without -- and
with as nuch as | could be as her client but wthout her
maki ng an appearance in Court.

Q And when you filed that and this nay be an obvi ous
question but | have to ask it, so were you endi ng your
| awyer-client relationship with Ms. Benelli when you filed
that fornf

A.  No.

Q Oay. And at that tinme, was it your understanding
that Ms. Benelli was still working on your behalf to try to
hel p resol ve the matter?

A, Yes.

Q At sone point, did you receive a phone call from
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Deni se's | awer, M. Fink?

A, Yes.

Q Can you explain to the panel your best nenory of when
and how that occurred?

A Yup. It was August 17th of 2020. | received a
m ssed call on ny phone. | had called back the office and
left a nessage for himto call ne back. He called ne back

nonents after that and we spoke for around ten mnutes or so

and he had asked ne to cone in to neet and -- conme into the
office and neet and we're going to try to resolve the -- the
di vorce proceedi ngs, which | was very excited for. | was

| ooking forward to being able to have that process nove
f orwar d

And so we tried to set up a date that |I could cone in and
| said, okay, let ne check with ny attorney, Penny Benelli, to
see if she's available for that time. He stopped ne and said
that she wouldn't have to be there because | filed pro se
which | didn't feel so confortable with because she had been
representing nme through every part of the matter so far,
exchanging emails with him-- with Ms. Benelli and M. Fink.
So at that point, | just kind of, you know, ended the
conversation and -- and then took the next steps.

Q And what do you nean by the next steps, did you cal
Ms. Benelli?

A, Yes.
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Q Gkay. D d you ever neet with M. Fink?

A.  No.

Q D d you ever speak with himagain directly after that
phone cal | ?

A.  No.

Q ay. | have no other questions for you. M. Sleigh
may has sone questions for you and the panel nmay have sone
question to you, but thank you for your tine.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR SLElI GH:

Q Thank you, Ms. Marshall. You said you had a m ssed
call on your phone. You returned the call, did you know, at
that time that it was M. Fink that called you?

A, Yes.

Q And then he returned your return fairly pronptly?

A, Yes.

Q And you -- in essence, the conversation was him
inviting you to set up atine to cone and speak with himin an
attempt to resolve the divorce issues, right?

A. Correct.

Q You told the panel that you to himfor about ten

m nutes, do you renmenber giving a deposition when you told ne

that the call lasted six mnutes and el even seconds?
A Yes, | do. | have it pulled up on ny phone at the
nonment. |t was August 17th at 2:17 p.m Six mnutes and
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el even seconds.

Q And you would agree with ne that no substantive
| ssues about the divorce were discussed during that
conversation, right?

A. Correct. Believe or not it was just setting up a
tine to be able to come in and discuss the matter.

Q And M. Fink has never contacted you directly since;
Is that right?

A. That's correct.

MR. SLEIGH | have no further questions.
THE COURT: Any redirect?
M5. KATZ: Just one.
REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY Ms. KATZ:

Q Even when M. Fink asked you if you were interested
in comng to sit down and tal k about resolving the matter.
What do you recall your exact or approximate response was when
he suggested that?

A. M response was excitenent to be able to have the
process nove forward in the manner of the divorce then when
| -- then when initiated and said that et me get a hold of
Penny Benelli so that the three of us can neet, then when he
said that she doesn't have to be there, then ny feelings
i mredi ately changed and | felt very unconfortable.

Q ay. But when he asked you to cone in, is it your
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menory that you communi cated with excitenment and ent husi asm
that you --

A. Yes. Because |I'd like to have it nove al ong.

Q Ckay, thank you. | have no further questions.

MR SLEIGH Nothing from ne.

MR KARNEDY: Panel nenbers, mnd if | ask
(i ndiscernible) questions?

M5. TAYLOR: Just one quick one.

M. Marshall, you nentioned when you hung up with M.
Fink that you called Ms. Benelli. Can you -- to the best your
best of your know edge, can you kind of describe that
conversation that you had with her?

THE WTNESS: | called her inmmediately and it was
only nonments after and said | had just gotten off the phone
with M. Fink. And she said, when, now? And | said yeah I
had just gotten off the phone with himand he tried to set up
an appointnent to cone in and talk and discuss -- discussed
the divorce and said when | nentioned that I would get a hold
of her, how he said she wouldn't have to be there. And --
and, you know, she -- she said that you can't do that, that
violates client -- client privilege. You're ny client and he
can't reach out to you directly; he has to continue to go
through ne as they -- at that -- up to that point.

M5. TAYLOR. (Ckay. Thank you.

MR KARNEDY: Do you have any questions?
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MR ZUK:  No.
MR KARNEDY: | have no questions of the w tness

either. GOkay. Anything before | let the wtness go?

M5. KATZ: Nothing --

MR. SLEIGH  No.

MS. KATZ: -- from ne.

MR. SLEIGH  No.

M5. KATZ: Thank you very nuch for your tinme.

MR KARNEDY: Thank you very much for your tine.

M5. KATZ: Can you let me Ms. Benelli know that we're

ready for her.
MR MARSHALL: Yes, thank you.
(Pause)

MR KARNEDY: All right. W're going to swear --
we're going to swear you in and then the attorneys wll ask
you some questions. Ckay?

M5. PATRICIA G BENELLI: Yup.

MR KARNEDY: Wbuld you pl ease raise your right hand?

PATRICI A G BENELL

havi ng been duly sworn, testified as follows:

THE WTNESS: | do.

MR KARNEDY: Ms. Katz, your w tness.

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MS. KATZ:

Q Good norning, Ms. Benelli. Can you introduce
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yourself to the panel and tell thema little bit about your
practice and your thirty years of practicing law in Vernont?

A. Thank you. M nane is Patricia Benelli. | am
usual ly called Penny. So Penny Benelli is what a | ot of
people refer to nme, even judges. | have been in practice in
Vernmont for thirty-five years as of -- just after Labor Day.
| graduated in 1985 from Vernont Law School magna cum | aude
and | worked for the courts -- | worked for the W ndham
courts, all of the courts for a year after |aw school from
August 1985 to August 1986 and then right after Labor Day I
joined Jake Dakin & Haul (ph.), which is what this law firm
used to be, and was an associate here until 1990 when John
(ph.) -- John Haul left the practice and it becane Dakin &
Benelli PC and it's been that ever since.

| used to do a variety of civil cases and dabbl ed very
briefly in crimnal |aw when | started practice. But over the
years, it has gradually becone a practice devoted al nost
exclusively to famly law. | occasionally do a mnor civi
thing that's related to it for a client but | don't take
separate -- | don't take new clients in civil cases unless
they're related to famly law, things |ike cohabitants and |
do sonetines do adoptions in the probate court but | consider
those all famly practice. So | would say it's at |east
twenty years that |'ve done al nost exclusively famly

practice. | have been chair of the Vernont Bar Association's
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famly |l aw section for fourteen years.

Q M. Benelli, did you conme to represent Nathan
Marshall in a divorce matter? And | shoul d preface these
questions with to the extent that questions might call for
unnecessary additional confidential attorney client
information, that's not what |I'masking for. But --

A, Ckay.

Q ~-- did you conme to represent Nathan Marshall in a
di vorce matter?

Yes, | did.

O

And do you recall when that was?

A Yes, it was May 18th of 2020.

Q D dyou and M. Fink have sonme email communications
about your client's matters?

A Yes, we did.

Q And those communi cations have already been admtted
into evidence but 1'd like to ask you a coupl e questi ons about
them Do you have those handy so that you'll know what we're
referring to?

A. Yes, | have a folder with all of the exhibits.

MS. KATZ: And | apologize. | did not check with the

panel on this as | was examning M. Fink, but I did not do a

screen share last tine. | can do a screen share if it's
easier for the panel. |Is that sonething the panel would
prefer or shall | continue as | have been with the exhibits?
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MR. KARNEDY: [|'mcontent with the paper exhibits I
have but |I'Il defer to nmy panel nenbers.

M5. TAYLOR |I'mfine with the paper copies as well.

MR KUTZ: |I'mfine.

MR KARNEDY: Ckay.

BY M5. KATZ:
Q Sol think we won't -- should go through the winger
rol e of screen sharing and stop sharing and I'll just ask you

t he questions since you have themin front of you too.

A, Ckay.

Q I'mlooking that the one that is marked AZ-3. And it
| ooks to me that this is email communication from June 1st of
2020, and it's fromyou to M. Fink and ask you what is it you
were generally comunicating here with M. Fink and do you
recall is this the first comunication you had with himon the
matter? Uh-oh. | think you're muted or I can't hear you.

A Sorry. It nust have been the problem| was trying to
avoid. It was ny first comunication with M. Fink and the
purpose was to let himknow that | was -- that | was
representing Nathan Marshall in what were negotiations then
related to a divorce. There was no -- there was no action
pending in Court at that tine.

Q kay. So going forward then to G4, was this the
next conmuni cati on that you recall having between with you and

M. Fink with respect to Denise and Nathan's --
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A Yes, it was --

Q -- divorce.

A.  -- because it was two days |later.
Q Ckay.

A Yes.

Q What did you understand was the purpose of that
comuni cati on?

A, Well, | understood that he was engaging with ne on
negotiating for the divorce. W were tal king about the
proposal s and what had been sent to ny client and he asked ne
tocall himif he -- if | had any further questions.

Q Oay. So nmoving forward then with 5 and 6, would you
say -- are those further witten comunications that you had
with M. Fink, how did you understand what the back and forth,
t he subject matter of those communicati ons was about? Wat
was your under st andi ng

A, Well, the subject matter was the proposal that M.
Fink had nmade to ny client on May 22nd before he knew that |
was representing himand we were on -- nunber 5is ny email to
himthe sane day that | got the response fromhimon June 3rd
and nunber 6 is his response to ne. Again, we are -- we are
negoti ating sone of the terns of the agreement at this point.

Q And by agreenent, do you nean agreenent as to how to
di ssol ve the marriage and divide up the property?

A.  Yes, that was what the proposal was for M. Fink to
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ny client. W were referencing the proposal that had been
made on May 22nd.

Q So nmoving forward in the chronol ogy of yours and M.
Fink's witten conmmunication. |'m]looking now at DC-8 and 9
and those are dated around about June 12th of 2020. Wen you
wer e having these comuni cations with M. Fink, what was your
under st andi ng of what the purpose of those comunicati ons was?

A. It was nore communi cation back and forth. W were
negoti ati ng what had been happening. M client was as part of
the -- the proposed settlenment then, ny client was going to
file out his client's interest in sonme property, real property
in Springfield. And he had to nake arrangenents to get a | oan
to do that and the bank was putting on a condition that he had
to be released fromthe nortgage on the famly hone which was
in both loans to do that so we were back and forth on how we
were we going to get -- you know, does this have to have to
happen in order, in what order are there going to be
deadlines. It was about -- | believe both of these were --
yeah. | think both of these enmails were focused on that issue
of the arrangenments that had to be made for himto be able to
buy out -- ny client to buy out his client's interest.

Q In the context of any of these negotiations with M.
Fink, did you ever indicate in any way that if a -- if an
actual divorce conplaint was filed or any sort of |awsuit was

initiated, that that would be a different matter that you
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woul d not be involved in representing Nathan on?

A If it was a divorce, no. |If there had been another
matter between the parties, that would not have been sonet hi ng
| probably would have been involved in but if it were related
to the divorce, absolutely no. | was representing himin that
at this point.

Q Ckay. At sone point, did Denise serve Nathan with a
di vorce conplaint or try to have himshared with the divorce
conpl ai nt ?

A. No, there was an attenpt at service. | don't
remenber the date but the summons was not signed and so it
wasn't proper service and a proper service was finally made in
Court when both of the parties were there on an RFA proceedi ng
that ny client had -- had filed an RFA conpl ai nt agai nst
Deni se and at the hearing he was served by, | think, the court
officer -- | wasn't there. | didn't represent himon the RFA
and | wasn't there but | understand he was served then

Q kay. Taking a look at DC-7, does that |ook to you
to be the formof acceptance of service where -- do you
bel i eve that shows the actual service of the conplaint?

A Yes, he -- this is signed by Nathan. | recognize his
signature and it says that it's his acceptance of the summobns
and conplaint as of July 20th, 2020.

Q And at any point after the filing or service of the

di vorce conplaint, did you say or indicate in any way to M.
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Fink that he had perm ssion to speak with your client
directly --

A.  No.

Q -- without reaching a resolution

A No, | didn't.

Q Dd M. Mrshall, Nathan, did he ever file an answer
to the divorce conplaint?

A.  Yes, he did.

Q ay. So taking a DC-10, does that | ook to be the
answer that he filed?

A Yes, it is.

Q ay. And what, if anything, can you tell the pane

about this answer, bearing in mnd that the answer is pro se?

A well, I --
MR SLEIGH | object to the question. Wat, if
anything, can you tell ne? | nean, | don't think that that

phrased to get a neani ngful response.
MR KARNEDY: Wy don't you just ask a different
question, rephrase it.

M5. KATZ: Ckay. But the question was, what, if

anything, can you tell the panel. | was trying not to |ead
the witness, but I'Il ask a different question.
BY Ms. KATZ:

Q The answer that's been admtted as DC-10. Do you

agree that it is an answer that is to filed pro se?
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A Yes.

Q \Wy?

A. Because it's fromM. Mrshall was still hoping,
remenber, negotiating a settlenent and he was still hoping

that they would reach a settlenent and there woul dn't be any
court proceeding. There is a procedure in famly court that

if -- if you ve been separated for six nonths and you agree to
everything, you can just file all the docunents and literally
get the divorce by mail, that was his hope. And if I'mto
enter an appearance in court for a client, | require a
different agreenent, a representation agreenent that provides
for that and a retainer for that and M. Mrshall at that tine
was hopi ng he wasn't going to have to pay ne a retainer to
represent himin Court. So | was helping himwth this
because this is nmy handwiting on the -- on the answer. But
again | was still helping himw thout entering an appearance
for himin Court.

Q And it |Iooks as though you and M. WMarshall worked on
this because correct ne if I'mwong, the notary stanp there,
the data, July 29th, 2020. |Is that your notary and notary
st anp?

A It is.

Q kay. After M. Marshall filed the pro se answer
with your assistance, did you tell the respondent anything at

all along the lines of I no long representing M. Marshall, if

eScribers, LLC | (973) 406-2250
operations@scribers.net | ww. escribers. net




© o0 N o o A~ w NP

N NN N NN R PR R R R R R R R
O D W N P O © O N o 00 M W N B O

58

you want to settle, just call hin®

A.  No.

Q Wul d you say that filing this answer pro se but
al so being involved in negotiations about dividing property in
your experience is not an unusual practice for famly lawin
your region?

A Not at all. [It's very common for litigants who can't
afford to hire sonebody to -- to represent themin Court, to
hire soneone to go over docunents, to help prepare docunents,
to review proposals, | do that alot. | do that often. And
believe all the attorneys in this area do that. | know | have
negoti ated with other attorneys where neither one of us has
entered an appearance in Court until everything was resol ved
and then we could file and sonetines we didn't even get
involved in the actual filling, the parties would also file
the stipulation and the notion for final order wthout a
hearing and it all went through w thout the Court ever having
known that there were any attorneys involved but in fact,
there were attorneys on both sides reaching the resol ution and
preparing the docunents. [It's very conmon.

Q Now, there's a famly court rule that addresses
limted scope representation, right?

A Yes. Famly Court Rule 15. | believe it is. F --

Q So --

A O P. (Indiscernible).
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Q \Wiat exactly is -- how exactly does that rule work?
A Well, that rule only involves (indiscernible) --

MR SLEIGH (Objection as to a basis for the answer
and there is no foundation that she has any information about
how it works in such a broad sense. |s she tal king about case
| aw construing it, is she tal king about other statutes, is she
tal ki ng about regulations or is this just her own assessnent
of how she thinks it works?

M5. KATZ: Ckay. | can rephrase the question

Q The famly court rule that addresses |imted-scope
representation, is that a rule that you are famliar wth?

A, Yes.

Q Have you ever entered a |limted-scope representation
for aclient?

A, Ch, yes. Many tines, actually.

Q In practical terns, can you explain how that worked?

A. Yes. That is for entering an appearance in court.
It has nothing to do with representation outside of court.
That, | have entered appearances -- a limted appearance under
that rule can be for just one proceeding, |like attending a
case manager's conference, attending a -- a child support
hearing or a parental rights hearing. It can, with the
court's permssion, also be for -- for representing a client
in only one portion of, for instance, a final hearing. But

you need court perm ssion to do that and when you enter the
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appearance, you are attorney of record for that party but only
for -- in the way that you limt it in the -- in the
description of the entrance of your appearance.

And then that -- | have, for instance, entered
appear ances for parties for case managers conference only.
Wien the case managers conference is over, |I'mno |longer their
attorney of record as far as the court is concerned, unless I
enter a new appearance. But this is all court appearances.
This, again, is part of the judicial systems way of hel ping
parties get counsel who couldn't otherwise afford it because
they can't afford to hire an attorney for everything but they
can afford to hire an attorney for a limted purpose and
that's what the rule is for and |I've used it many tines.

Q 1'dlike to ask you about the DC 13 which | ooks to be
emai | dated July 31st, 2020 fromyou to M. Fink, and can you
descri be generally what you were trying to comuni cate with
that email ?

M5. KATZ: Oh. She is nuted again

A I'msorry. | do not know how -- oh. | know.
think I hit the spacebar with the fol der that has the exhibits
init. 1'lIl try to separate it better. |'msorry.

Q ay. Start fromthe beginning, whereas | was asking
you how you -- what you were trying to comunicate with the
emai|l that is marked DC-13.

A, (Ckay. Yes. Wat | was comunicating is a
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counterproposal to M. Fink. M client did not accept the
proposal of mss -- of his client on May 22nd and this says
attached please find a settlenent proposal from Nathan and
then had sone terns about it but that's what it was. It was a
comuni cati on of another proposal fromny client for
settlenent of the divorce.

Q And this proposal dated July 31st fromyou sent to
M. Fink --

A Yes.

Q ~-- (indiscernible) after the pro se notice of
appearance of July twenty 29th; is that right?

A, Yes.

MR SLEIGH  Your Honor, | just like to clarify that.
| mean, they're dated differently; is there a representation
that they were received simultaneously? [|'mnot sure what the
concl usi on was we're supposed to draw fromthat answer is.

MR KARNEDY: It's an answer to a question. | don't
know i f | understand your objection. You can follow up with
the w tness.

But if Attorney Sleigh is confused perhaps others
are; you mght want to follow up with a question, M. Katz.

M5. KATZ: | guess the question was intended to just
ask the witness if the further negotiations about the marriage
di ssolution and the division of property were still occurring

between the attorneys after the filing of the pro se notice of

eScribers, LLC | (973) 406-2250
operations@scribers.net | ww. escribers. net




© o0 N o o A~ w NP

N NN N NN R PR R R R R R R R
O D W N P O © O N o 00 M W N B O

62

appear ance in response to the divorce conplaint.

MR SLEIGH That's the filing. That's the key
question, Your Honor. So she refers to July 29th inmplicitly
as when it was filed. Her own record, DG 12 shows that it
wasn't filed until August 3rd. And that's what I'mtrying to
make sure isn't conpounded in this Iine of questioning.

M5. KATZ: Fair enough. | can change to a word -- do
a word change there.

BY MS. KATZ:

Q The pro se notice of appearance that you notarized
and worked on with M. Mrshall on July 29th of 2020, was that
before further negotiations between you and M. Fink about the
coupl e' s dissolution and disposition of property?

A Yes, it was.

Q Looking also at DC-11 --

A Ckay.

Q ~-- which is further communication fromM. Fink to
you. And that's dated July, 31st, 2020?

A Yes, it is.

Q Was that again communication between you and M. Fink
about the couple's property with a date reflected after the
day you and M. Marshall worked on his pro se notice of
appearance that you notarized for hinf

A Yes, it is. July 31st.

Q Oay. D d M. Fink ever ask you whether he could go
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directly through M. Marshall to speak to hi mabout possible
settlenment?

A.  No, he did not.

Q At sone point did you |learn that he had contacted
your client?
Yes, | did.
Was that concerning to you?

Very.

O > O

Can you expl ai n why?

A Well, M. Fink knew that | was representing M.
Marshall. | mean, your Exhibit 11, in that he refers to him
as ny client. And then | hear that he has called ny client on
the tel ephone and invited himto have a nmeeting with himal one
at his office to settle the divorce and that when ny client
said, well, I have to call Penny about that, he said, no, you
don't. Wat | heard was no, you don't have to; she's not
representing you in the divorce and you don't have to
(i ndi scernible).

MR SLEIGH [I'mgoing to object to Ms. Benelli's
hearsay rel ation of the conversation between M. Frank and M.
Marshall. M. Marshall testified as to the contents of that
conversation. Anything that Ms. Benelli is nowrelating is
ei ther hearsay from Marshall to her or a product of her own
i nf erence.

THE WTNESS: But the question was why | was
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concerned; that's why | was concer ned.

MR KARNEDY: Ms. Benelli, you're just a wtness
her e.

THE WTNESS: |'msorry.

MR KARNEDY: It's okay, it's a natural reaction.

Do you have anything say on that?

M5. TAYLOR: | agree; it's hearsay.

MR. KARNEDY: So the panel, disregard the hearsay
portion of the response to this question.
BY Ms. KATZ:

Q So the original question was was that concerning to
you and can you explain why. Can you explain to the panel,
why it's concerning that an opposing party could contact a
divorced litigant even if nothing exactly of substance was
addressed other than scheduling a neeting?

A. \Wll, do you nmean an opposing attorney?

Q Yes, explain why it's concerning generally? Wthout
Tal ki ng about what M. Fink said.

A. (Ckay. |It's very concerning because the -- whenever
there are negotiations going on, the reason you have counse

I's so your counsel can advise you on those and to have the

opposi ng counsel contact the party directly is -- is bypassing
counsel ; is bypassing his representation and that's unfair to
himand it's very unfair to the whole process. It's also the

rul es of professional conduct.
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Q And can it potentially arise if a client is having
direct conmmunication with the opposing party, that they could
vol unt eer sonet hing by accident even if nothing of substance
I's discussed?

A, On, absolutely.

MR SLEIGH Strike that as the nost tal king trash
|'ve ever heard.
THE W TNESS: What ?
MR KARNEDY: All right. Ask another question.
MS. KATZ: I'Il nove on.
BY MS. KATZ:
Q Wiat did you do when you found out that M. Fink had

call ed your client directly?

A | imediately sent an email to M. Fink. After ny
conversations with -- with Nathan; | sent an enmail to M.
Fink. | said heis -- | amrepresenting himin this divorce

action and you know that. You are not to have any direct
contact with him you are to go through ne, period. And then
| also, by the way, offered to nmeet with himand w th Nathan
to settle this at his office. So | said, you can't do it
alone but we're willing to do it with the three of us, if
that's something you're willing to do.

Q Wat was M. Fink's response to those conmuni cations
t hat you just spoke about?

A.  He sent me another email, | think it was a couple of
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days | ater because of the -- | can't renmenber the exact timng
on here now but | believe it's in sonme of the exhibits but he
sent ne back an email saying don't pontificate to ne. He's
not represented and that -- ny response was, yes, he is, you
know it and apparently you are going to have to be rem nded of
it by the professional responsibility board. He was
essentially telling ne he was going to ignore ny
representation of himand could continue to have tried to talk

to Nathan on his own, which as any attorney knows is extrenely

risky.
Q So --
A | wasn't going to allow it
Q I'msorry?
A | wasn't going to allow that at all and M. Fink was

implying that he still had the right to do it and | felt --
continued to ask --

MR SLEIGH:  (Objection, Your Honor. This is getting
a completely argunentative. As | understand it, all the
communi cati on between M. Fink and Ms. Benelli on this issue
is contained in the exhibits. There's no testinony that M.
Benelli and M. Fink had any other conversations or any other
nmeetings so if she's explaining beyond the four corners of
what | can -- what | understand to be the representation of
di sciplinary counter of the totality of the comunications,

everything el se she's offering is interpretation and it's
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i rrelevant.

MR, KARNEDY: Ms. Katz?

M5. KATZ: Is the objection rel evance?

MR. KARNEDY: That was the objection.

M5. KATZ: Ckay. Just making sure. | can --
can -- | can redirect the questioning to specify how M.
Benel i understood M. Fink's communications that are
enconpassed within DC-14, so | can do that. |Is that

accept abl e?

MR. SLEI G4 Does her understanding of the
conmuni cati ons that goes beyond the four corners because |
think we have a conplete witten record of the conmunications
as tothe letters in the email. No evidence has been
suggested that there was any other conmmunication that's not in
the record as adm ssible. Her understandi ng of what those

things says is sinply irrelevant and inadm ssible and it's --

MR KARNEDY: | understand --
MR SLEIGH: -- unsupported opinion evidence.
MR. KARNEDY: | understand the objection. |

under st and about what Attorney Katz is saying. Let's break
out .

(i ndi scernible), can you break us out into a --

MR. DI STEFANO Yeah. Sophie, can you put us in a
breakout room please, the panel nmenbers and nyself. Thank

you.
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THE OPERATI ONS ASSI STANT: | certainly can. Could
you pl ease just confirmthe nanes that you would like in a
breakout roonf

MR DI STEFANO Yes, it's nyself. Gary Karnedy,
Ashl ey Tayl or and Peter Zuk.

THE OPERATI ONS ASSI STANT: Geat, thank you.

(Recess at 11:35 a.m, until 11:38 a.m)

MR KARNEDY: GCkay. W're back on the record. [I'm
going to rule on the objection. I'mgoing to allow the
question. | think it helps the panel to understand the
context of the communications and what was going on. | wll

say that whether or not this is a violation of professional

responsibility, Attorney Benelli's opinion on that is not
sonething that we're going to be considering;, we'll make that
decision. And the -- other than the context and understand

t he communi cations (indiscernible).
So | don't know if the court reporter is able to read
t he question back, because there's been a passage of tine.
Sophi e, can you comuni cate with the court reporter,
| don't know.
THE OPERATI ONS ASSI STANT: Yes, certainly.
MR, KARNEDY: Thank you.
(Pause)
MR KARNEDY: (I ndiscernible).

(Pause)
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THE OPERATI ONS ASSI STANT: Good norning, folks. So
what is the question to the recorder, what -- what do you need
to know? What -- what was the |ast question read?

MR. KARNEDY: Yes, please.

THE OPERATI ONS ASSI STANT: Before the breakout roon?

MR. KARNEDY: Yes, please.

THE OPERATI ONS ASSI STANT:  Ckay.

(Pause)

THE COURT REPORTER: Thank you, folks. So the |ast
thing that | have on the record is the questioning of attorney
Benel | i .

MR KARNEDY: Right.

THE OPERATI ONS ASSI STANT: |Is that what you're
| ooking for?

MR KARNEDY: Yes, the |last question before we broke.

THE OPERATI ONS ASSI STANT: So what -- what did you
find concerning about himcontacting the client.

MR. KARNEDY: Thank you very nuch.

A. (Ckay. | was concerned because it neant that he could
have undue influence on ny client if he wanted to have a
conversation with himw thout ne present. | don't know what
he woul d ask; | don't know what my client would say. | don't
know how -- what he said to ny client was taken. There's a
great risk that he m ght say sonething that was not in his

best interest to say. There's a risk that he coul d be
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persuaded to agree to sonething that he definitely should not
have agreed to. The risk is to a client being in a one-on-one
nmeeting or conversation wi th opposing counsel.

BY MS. KATZ:

Q In the course of your conmmunications with M. Fink
after his phone call to Nathan, did you understand that M.
Fink was no | onger going to contact Nathan directly?

A No, | didn't, because he said even after | told him!l
was representing him he said, no, you're not. So | felt that
he could continue to try to talk to himone on one. That was
a very real concern of mne.

M5. KATZ: | do not have any further questions for
this w tness.
MR KARNEDY: All right.
MR SLEI G4 Thank you.
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR SLEI GH:

Q M. Benelli, I think you testified that you' ve been
practicing for thirty-five years. |Is that right?

A.  Yes, that's actually while representing clients. A
little over that. | was a law clerk for a year before that if
that counts. | was admitted to the bar in February of 1986
after what was back then a six-nmonth clerkship. So if it
counts fromthen, it's still thirty-five years but it's closer

to thirty-five and a half.
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Q | did a year clerkship too with Silvio Valente and
while | don't count it as practice, it was trying.

A. Yeah. | clerked for himas well.

Q So in any event. And in fact, you' ve been the chair
of the famly court section of the VBA for about the |ast
decade; is that right?

A. It's actually longer than that. | checked with the
VBA after our deposition because | didn't know and it turns
out | have been chair since 2007 so it's fourteen years.

Q And currently, you serve on the Famly Court Rul es
Committee; is that right?

A.  Yes, | do.

Q So you nust have been famliar with the devel opnent
of the authorization of so-called unbundled practice, correct?

A, Actually, not for the rule. 1 wasn't a nmenber of the
Fam |y Rules Committee then but | believe that that was a
topi c of consideration when in the Board of Bar Managers. |
was a menber of the Board of Bar Managers for eight years, |
think. And | believe we tal ked about that then but | honestly
don't renmenber. | do renmenber that it was an i ssue at some
point and I know it was an issue in the famly |aw section as
wel | .

Q So unbundl ed practice deviates fromthe traditiona
practice law in that | awer doesn't enter an appearance to

represent a client in all aspects of an issue or controversy;
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Is that right?

A, Right.

Q And the notion is that by allow ng that sort of
unbundl ed practice, people would get sone advice in situations
where their resources mght prohibit themfromgetting any
advice. Right?

A.  Yes and no. Advice, yes but it's nore than that
because unbundl ed representati on under the rule involves a
court appearance. So it nmeant that attorneys could appear in
court on limted issues but you don't have to -- and you don't
have to enter an appearance for sonebody to be an attorney for
sonebody.

Q Al right. Actually, the rules a little broader
rather than that, isn't it, it says you can represent somebody
with the Court on a specific issue under subsection F and
subsection C, you can help themw th the alternative dispute
resolution. You can help themnegotiate, it allows for al
sorts of unbundling practice, right?

A. It does but these are all unbundl ed practices that
i nvol ve court appearance. It only -- only governs appearance
of attorneys in court.

Q Well, we may beg to differ on how the rule applies
but at any rate, there is such a thing as filing a notice of
l'imted appearance, correct?

A.  Yes.
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Q And certainly that serves the salutary goal of
l etting people know who they m ght be in contact with, who
t hey shoul d contact in connection with a specific issue
regardi ng a case?

A, Certainly. It says |I'mrepresenting you in court.
It has the sane effect as a general notice of appearance as
far as attorney appearance is concerned for the other -- for
opposi ng parties and opposi ng attorneys.

Q So just getting to the chronology of this case a
little bit. You were approached by Nathan, | think you said
sonetinme in May; is that right?

A, Yes.

Q And fromMay until July 31st, you and M. Fink had
gone back and forth about various proposals to resolve the
di vorce case?

A, Yes, we had.

Q And those proposals had not conme to fruition, no
agreenent had been reached, right?

A, True.

Q And during that -- well, so do you have the DC
exhibits in front of you?

A. | do.

Q If you look at DC-12, you can see that the Court
record indicates there was a returning service of the

conpl ai nt and summons for divorce.
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Where exactly are you | ooki ng?
June 26th. Right under events and orders of the
court.

A. Right. (Indiscernible).

Q So you don't dispute -- you don't dispute that Nathan
was actually given a copy of the conplaint and sumobns at that
time, rather that because of sonme technicality, it didn't
qualify as adequate service; is that right?

A. No, if he had copies but the summons just wasn't
si gned.

Q Al right. And by virtue of your contact with
Nat han, you too had copies of the conplaint at that tine?

A.  Yeah, he sent themto me. He brought them over
sonetinme after he received them He didn't cone directly to
me.

Q So you and M. Fink go back and forth until July the
31st. On July the 29th, | take it that M. Marshall was in
your office preparing to review a notice of appearance, answer
to the conplaint and the counterclaim is that right?

A. That's right.

Q And if you look at DC- 10.

A Ckay.

Q If I"'mable to here -- hold on, I"'mtalking to
nysel f.

A Ckay.
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Q So DC-10, that's the notice of appearance and answer
to the conplaint and counterclaimthat you understood M.

Mar shal | prepared.

A Yes, | did.

Q Al right. It says the very first sentence was, "I
intend to represent nyself and hereby enter ny appearance with
the court. No attorney will represent ne in this case and
unl ess an attorney or | notify the court otherw se". That's
what it says, right?

A Yes.

Q And a pro se appearance neans sonebody is appearing
on their own without a | awer?

A. In court, yes

Q Well, the word case goes beyond sinply in court,
right, there's a lot of work on a case that happens outside
court --

A vell --

Q ~-- there's sonetinmes discovery, there's sonetines
di scussions, there's sonetines nmedi ati ons or somnetinmes
accounting. There's all sorts of things that happen in a case
outside of court, right?

A. That's true. But this is a notice of appearance in
court --

Q ay.

A.  -- (indiscernible).
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Q GCkay. You explain later on. But nmaybe you just
answer the questions right now So you signed this as a
notary, correct?

A Yes.

Q You' ve been a notary a long tine?

A.  Yeah. Ever since |'ve been in practice, | believe.
Yes.

Q And you wouldn't notarize a statenent that you knew
to be false, right?

A. That's true.

Q So the statenent that M. Marshall intended to
represent hinself and that no attorney will represent himin
this case unless an attorney or he notifies the court
otherwi se was true at the time that you notarized the

document, right?

A As it -- as it applied to a court appearance.

Q | understand you argunent. Just it true or not?

A Wll, it's not a yes or no question. It applies --
Q It is.

A

-- your notice and appearance (indiscernible).
Q Was that statenent true at the tinme that you
notarized it?
A.  Sir, appearance in court --
Q Was that statenent true at the tinme?

M5. KATZ: | made an objection. | nade an objection
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The objection is asked and answer ed.

MR SLEIGH |' haven't got an answer yet.

M5. KATZ: | believe the witnesses has answered the
questi on.

MR KARNEDY: | believe the witness has answered the

question. You can ask a different question.
BY MR SLElI GH:

Q Al right. Now, you notarized M. Marshall's
response on July the 29th; is that right?

A Yup.

Q And did you assist himwth filing it with the Court?

A. No, | think he filed it hinself. | sonetines file
things as a courtesy but |I don't believe | did that here.

Q Well, you don't know. You may have?

A It's possible but I do that -- |I don't personally do
that. The secretary will file it as a courtesy and we inform
the court if and when we do that that it is being done as a
courtesy only in that we are not entering an appearance for
the party.

Q Al right. So going back to DC-12. You can see that
Nat han's notice of pro se appearance was docketed on August
the 3rd, 2020, correct?

A Ckay.

Q Do you have any reason to believe that M. Fink

received a copy of that notice prior to August 3rd, 20207
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A. No, | didn't send it to him

Q Between August 3rd and August 17th, did you
comuni cate in any way with M. Fink?

A No, | don't think so. It's (indiscernible) --

Q Ckay.

A.  -- (indiscernible) respondent. So I don't believe I
di d.

Q Between August 3rd and August 17th, did M. Fink
comuni cate with you?

A.  Not that I know of, no.

Q Have you personal know edge as to whet her any issue
of substance regarding the contested issue fromthe divorce
were di scussed in any way in the August 17th phone
conversati on between M. Fink and M. Marshall?

A Yes, | did.

Q Do you have personal know edge?

A. No, | don't have personal know edge, but | have what

Mster --
Q | was asking personal know edge. That's all | said.
A. | was not part of the conversation. | did not hear
it, so no.

Q Now at sone point, you entered an actual appearance
on behalf of M. Marshall; is that right?
A, Yes.

Q And do you have the respondent's exhibits in front of
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you?

A. | do.

Q Is respondent's exhibit 3 a copy of your notice of
appear ance?

A. Actually, no. | don't have that.

MR. KARNEDY: Pause for a second. | need to get
those exhibits in front of ne.

THE WTNESS: Yeah. | have exhibits DG 1 through 14.
| don't have any other exhibits in front of the. |If there are
other scents, then they weren't put into this folder, but I
can probably retrieve themif they were sent to us. | can ask
ny assistant to get them

MR. DI STEFANO Ms. Tayl or, can you forward the
exhibits to the w tness?

MS. KATZ: Yeah.

MR. DI STEFANO Yeah. This is Mark -- for the pane
initially and then let's expand it beyond that for the
parties. You know, not -- Merrick just sent those to us now.
They should be in your inbox. |If you get to the inbox for the
panel menbers, | was able to open it up. That's the first
|'ve seen. So perhaps disciplinary counsel could -- | nean,
again, if you want to screen share, we can -- we could do it
this way. Is that -- is that Attorney Sleigh putting that up
or is that you?

M5. KATZ: No. Oh. Scared ne there. | thought I
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was doing it.

MR. DI STEFANG |Is that Ashley Taylor putting this
up?

MR SLEIGH No, it's ne.

MR. DI STEFANO Ch. (kay, great. So we can do it
this way and for the benefit of the panel nenbers, it's
sonet hing in your inbox.

MR SLEI G4 Thank you, all. [It's terrific. | can
see it and | can see it in ny inbox. Wtness, see it? ood.

THE WTNESS: Yes, | can. Yup
BY MR SLEI GH:

Q So that's your Cctober 6th entry notice of appearance
on behalf of Nathan; is that right?

A Yes, it is.

Q And as | understand it, the divorce proceedings are
conti nui ng apace?

A.  Yeah.

Q And other than the witten conmunication that you
have in front of you, the disciplinary counsel's exhibits, do
you have any other record of comunications between yoursel f
and M. Fink regarding the divorce of Nathan and Deni se?

A. Well, we've had several other conmunications because
we have conti nued since then, we've had notions in court. we
have continued to negotiate on settlenent. W've had nore

back and forth correspondence.
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Q Fair enough

A.  Yeah.

Q The tinme limt on ny question. The DC exhibits are
the full record of comunication between you and M. Fink
regarding the marital situation involving Denise and Nat han up
to and includi ng August of 20207

A. That's true.

Q | don't have anything further. Thank you

MR, KARNEDY: Redirect?
M5. KATZ: Yes, just briefly.
REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MS. KATZ:

Q M. Benelli, after you entered your notice of
appearance in Qctober of 2020 in court for the divorce matter,
still pending, did the respondent, M. Fink ever bring up to
the court, to your nmenory any issue related to the scope of
your appearance at all of?

A.  Nope, never.

Q Didthe Court ever raise any issue or question with
respect to your role in M. Marshall's pro se answer that
shows your notary stanp?

A.  No.

Q D d the respondent suggest or did the Court ever find
that anything you did or M. Marshall did relative to that pro

se appearance was deceitful or dishonest or otherw se
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intending to m sl ead anyone?

A. No. It's very common for an appearance to start out
pro se and then for an attorney (audio interference),
especially famly court, | think.

Q | do not have any further questions, the panel may
have sone questions for you, Ms. Benelli.

MR KARNEDY: Peter, Any questions?

MR, ZUK: No.

MR. KARNEDY: Ms. Taylor, any questions?

M5. TAYLOR: No questions.

MR. KARNEDY: So | have one question, if you go to
the DC-10, notice of appearance. | think you testified you

filled that out with your client, heled himto prepare it and
you' ve had some cross-exam nation about those first couple of
sentences in the docunent, correct? You with me so far?

THE W TNESS: Yes.

MR. KARNEDY: So prior to filling this out at the
time, you were feeling this out, did you ever think to call up
Attorney Fink JUST to | et himknow what's going on in terns of
the representation in Court versus negotiation?

THE WTNESS: No, it's pretty standard practice that
attorneys represent people outside of Court all the tine; it's
not a conflict wwth an attorney with a -- with a party
entering a pro se appearance. It doesn't negate the

representation out of court and a notice of appearance only
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tells the court that -- that | amthere as an attorney so they
comuni cate with nme. That was not the intent that the Court
woul d do that here. But that doesn't nean that M. Fink
didn't know | was still representing. W were still
negoti ati ng.

MR KARNEDY: M only question is whether you called

THE W TNESS: No.

MR KARNEDY: -- (indiscernible) --

MR KARNEDY: Had you had any other matters with him
It sounds |ike over the years you've had matters together,
right?

THE WTNESS: W have five or six going right now.

MR KARNEDY: And did you ever have a situation |ike
this with himbefore where you represented a client, were
negotiating with himalong the way, and then it got to the
poi nt of court you weren't doing that part, you ever had that

with himbefore?

THE WTNESS: Honestly, let ne think. | don't know
| had that nany tines. | may have. | honestly can't renenber
specifically. |[1'"ve probably done hundred cases with M. Fink

over the years, maybe nore and | honestly don't renenber. But
this is a conmon occurrence so it may have -- nmay have
happened if but can't swear to it.

MR. KARNEDY: Thank you very nuch.
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| think we're all done with you, Attorney Benelli.
Thank you so nuch.
THE WTNESS: Thank you. 1'll check out then. Thank

you. Bye-bye.

MR KARNEDY: Any nore w tnesses, Attorney Katz?
M5. KATZ: No, That concl udes ny case.

MR KARNEDY: Attorney Sleigh?

MR SLEIGH No, no witnesses, Your Honor.

MR. KARNEDY: | believe, Mark, unless you tell ne

different, the record is closed and we could nove on to
closing at this point. |Is that correct, Mark?

MR, DI STEFANO Yeah, | think it is, but I also think
that we should take a short break in the breakout room the
panel and nyself to discuss a few things before we -- before
we concl ude the haring.

MR KARNEDY: Ckay. So we'll keep the record open
until we have that discussion and then we'll come back.

MR, DI STEFANO Sophie, can you put us in a breakout
room please? And it's going to be nyself, Gary Karnedy,
Ashl ey Tayl or, and Peter Zuk.

THE OPERATI ONS ASSI STANT:  Certainly.

MR. DI STEFANO Thank you

(Recess at 12:08 p.m, until 12:16 p.m)
MR KARNEDY: OCh. W're muted. W good to go with

the court reporter.
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THE COURT REPORTER: Yes. The Court is all set to
resune.

MR KARNEDY: Thank you. So we'll go back on the
record. | had referenced closings, if you all want to do
cl osings, you can and then we have sonme mnisterial matters to
tal k about on schedul i ng.

What are your thoughts, counsel ?

M5. KATZ: | would certainly --

MR SLEIGH | don't think it's particularly
necessary, it seens like it's a pretty clear, factual basis,
not hi ng conplicated about it.

MR KARNEDY: Ckay.

M5. KATZ: | trust the panel to execute its job and
don't think we need to do closings. Thank you.

MR KARNEDY: Terrific. And I'Il turn it over to
Mark for some deadlines and confirmation on exhibits.

MR. DI STEFANO Thank you. So we typically -- the
panels typically offer the parties an opportunity to file

proposed findings of fact and conclusions of aw and in

general, it's -- it's nore -- you know, | think the panel
woul d prefer to get sone |egal briefing, as -- you know, could
be a legal meno. It doesn't have to be called concl usions of

law. We have a nmenp that was filed by respondent before the
hearing but respondent can have anot her opportunity to file a

post hearing legal nmeno. We'd like the parties as part of any
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subm ssion that they nake to address both issues having to do
with whether a violation has been proven and the | ega
el enents of the rules that are charged and to generally assi st
the panel the way parties routinely do in civil proceedings
when they file proposed concl usions of [aw or |egal nenos.

As far as time goes, there's sone flexibility there.
The panels will often ask the parties if they can do that
wthin thirty days, if the -- if the panels -- if the parties
need sone additional tine, we can talk about that. And so |
think we need to hear fromthe -- the parties counsel. W
need to hear fromcounsel on how nmuch tinme they'd like to file
any proposed findings and concl usi ons of |aw.

MR SLEIGH | just want seven days after Ms. Katz.

MR KARNEDY: We can build a reply period in, but
frankly, it's -- it's hel pful --

MR SLEIGH  Yeah.

MR KARNEDY: -- to have the parties file at the sane
time, if youd like areply -- if you' d like a short period
for a reply. There's no -- there's no problemwth that, I
believe is --

MR SLEIGH That's fine. Sinultaneous filings is
fine. | just I'd like to make m ne nore pointed and shorter
if I can but that's fine, sinmultaneous filing is fine. It's
okay with ne.

Wiy don't we say -- why don't we say just a thought.
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So any reply briefs can be pointed. Wy don't we have sone
sort of page Iimt on themso we're not putting too nmuch work
on the attorneys on sonething that's pretty -- relatively
straightforward. |1'Il defer to you on that.

MR. KARNEDY: So Ms. Katz, what do you propose for
time periods?

M5. KATZ: I'mfine with thirty days. Like whatever
date is needed is fine wwth ne, | don't care.

MR. KARNEDY: Ckay. So why don't we say thirty days

for proposed findings and | egal nenos and -- and then we'll --
we'll allow seven days for replies to be filed, not to exceed
ten pages? Is that -- chair is that work, you want shorter
than that?

MR. DISTEFANO No, | think that's fine

MR KARNEDY: Ckay. Seven days to four to file any
reply and not to exceed -- not to exceed ten pages. Ckay.
The last thing is | left before the hearings conclude, 1'd
like to just make sure everybody's clear about the exhibits.

MR KARNEDY: Mark, could we go back for a second.
You had nentioned sonet hing el se, which is--

MR KARNEDY: Sure.

MR DI STEFANO -- we're supposed to issue a decision
within sixty days.

MR KARNEDY: That's right.

MR. DI STEFANO And we just want to be clear with
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everyone's schedules that it could be sixty days from when
those reply briefs have been filed.

MR KARNEDY: Yeabh.

MR DI STEFANO. Do we have consent on that?

MR. KARNEDY: Yes.

MR. DI STEFANO. Attorney Katz?

M5. KATZ: | didn't realize | got to weigh in on
that. Whatever anmount of tinme the panel needs to do its job
Is fine by me.

MR DI STEFANO Ckay. Thank you

And thank you, Chair, for renenbering that. And | do
like to just make sure that everybody is on the sanme page with
the exhibits. W have DC-1 through 14 have all been admtted
into the record and we have Respondent's 1 and Respondent's 3
t hat have been admtted into the record and nothing el se
that's -- that's what | have for exhibits.

MR KARNEDY: Right.

MR DI STEFANO Ckay. All right. 1 think fromny
standpoint, that's all -- that's all we need to do today and
Chair or any of the other panel nmenbers, if you have anything
more you want to say.

MR KARNEDY: | don't believe so. | think the
records cl osed.

M. Fink, thank you very much for your tine today.

MR. DI STEFANO And we can -- we can let the --
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Sophie, we can let the parties and the w tnesses go
now and I would like to hold the panel for --

MR FINK I'msorry. | was nmuted. And in response,
| thanked you, sir.

MR. SLEIGH | was raising ny hand because that's
what | did in 4th grade. Wwo do | order a transcript fronf

MR DI STEFANO So the way -- the way it works is
that you can get the information for a transcript to order it
t hrough the program adm ni strator, Eric Gudgefield (ph.),
unless it's Attorney Katz has sonme other angle on this. Ckay.
She'll be able to -- she'll be able to help you with that,

MR SLEIGH Geat. Thank you.

MR DI STEFANO (Ckay. And | was about to ask Sophie

Sophie, we'd like to let the parties go but the panel
and | would like to have a confidential session afterwards and
we don't need the FTR for that because our discussions are all
confidential as a matter of law. So I think we can just close
the record on that. And it would be |ike the equival ent of
putting us in a breakout room but whether you want to put us
in a breakout roomor just nake sure everybody's off, it's
fine. Either way. Just if you can nmake that happen and
finally, just thank you so nuch, Sophie, for your help

And al so for Betty Wsowsky (ph.) for stepping in in
the situation and hel ping us with the FTR

Thank you, Betty.
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MR. SLEIGH: Thanks all. Bye.

MS. KATZ: Thanks.

MR FINK: Thank you, panel.
(Proceedi ngs concluded at 12: 23 PM
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CERTI FI CATI ON
|, Jordan Robins, the court-approved transcriber, do
hereby certify the foregoing is a true and correct transcript
fromthe official electronic sound recording of the

proceedi ngs in the above-entitled matter.

Nondow  Kolana Cctober 11, 2021
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